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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF TD TOLL ROAD PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Financial Statements

1. We have audited the accompanying financial statements of TD Toll Road Private Limited
(“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31= March, 2017, the Statement of
Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of the
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

2. The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated
in Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of
these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance (including other comprehensive income), cash flows and changes in equity of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards specified in the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of
the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatemen t, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Standalone Ind AS Financial statements
based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards
and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of
the Act and the Rules made there under.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical
requirernents and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

4. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
the disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment aof the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal financial cantrol relevant to the Company’s preparation of the financial
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statements that give a true and fzir view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
whether the Company has in place an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and the operating effectiveness of such controls. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Opinion

6. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required hy
the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
31+ March, 2017, and its loss, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on
that date.

Other Matter

7. The financial information of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2016 and
the transition date opening balance sheet as at April 1, 2015 included in these standalone
Ind AS financial statements, are based on the previously issued statutory financial
statements for the year ended March 31, 2016 and March 31, 2015 prepared in accordance
with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 which were audited by us, on
which we expressed an unmodified opinion vide our report dated May 14, 2016 and May
18, 2015 respectively. The adjustments to those financial statements for the differences in
accounting principles adopted by the company in transition to Ind AS have been audited by
us.

Qur apinion is not qualified in respect of this matter.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

8. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order 2016 (“the order”) issued hy the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section ( 11) of section 143 of the Act, and on
the basis of such checks of the books and records of the company as we considered
appropriate and according to the information and explanations given to us, we give in
Annexure - "A" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the order.

9. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of aur audit;

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books
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The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive
income), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account

in our opinion, the aforesaid stardalone financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act

On the basis of the wrillen representations received from the directors as on 31= March,
2017, taken on record hy the Board of Directnrs, none of the directors is disqualificd as on
31+ March, 2017 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting of
the company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, we give our separate report
in “Anncxure - B",

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would have a material
impact its financial position

ii) Based upon the assessment made by the company, there are no material foreseeable
losses on its long term contracts that may require any provisioning

iii) In view of there being no amounts required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund for the year under audit the reporting under this
clause is not applicable.

iv) The company has provided requisite disclosures in its financial statements as to
holdings as well as dealings in Specified Bank Notes during the period from
November 8, 2016 to December 30, 2016. Based on audit procedures and relying
on the management representation we report that the disclosures are in
accordanee with books of account maintained by the Company and as produced
to us by the Management - Refer Note 32;

For MKPS & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN 302014E

| S 44

arendra Khandal
rtner

"M No. 065025

Mumbai, April 14, 2017 m—
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Annexure - A to the Independent Auditors Report
Referred to in para 7 of our report of even date, to the members of TD Toll Road Private
Limited for the year ended March 31,2017

i)

iii)

vi]

vil)

(a) The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, with respect to its
fixed assels comprising of Intangible Assets representi ng toll collection rights.

(b] The fixed assets of the company have been physically verified by the management
during the year and no material discrepancies have been noticed on such verification. In
our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable.

(¢} According to the information and explanations provided to us, there are no immovable
properties included in the fixed assets of the company and accordingly the reporting
reguirements under sub clause (c) of clause (i) of paragraph 3 of the order are not
applicable,

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company
has sub-contracted the entire construction / operation related activities and therefore does
not carry any inventories. Hence, the reporting requirements under clause (ii) of paragraph 3
of the order are not applicable.

In our apinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the company
has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnership or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the
Companies Act 2013. Accordingly, the reporting requirements under sub-clause (a), (b) and
(c) of Clause (iii] of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no
loans, investments, guarantees and securities granted in respect of which provisions of
section 185 and 186 of the Act are applicable and hence the reporting requirements under
clause (iv) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company
has not accepted any deposits during the period under audit. Consequently, the directives
issued by Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the
rules framed thereunder are not applicable.

The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under sub-
section (1) of section 148 of the Act for the company. We have broadly reviewed such records
and are of the opinion that prima-facie, the prescribed records have been made and
maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the records with a view
to determine whether they are accurats or complete,

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the records of
the company examined by us, the company is generally regular in depositing the
undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employecs' state insurance,
income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess
and any other material statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities in
India.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no undisputed
amounts in respect of the aforesaid statutory dues which in arrears as at March 31,
2017 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

e
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(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no applicable
statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

vili) Based upon the audit procedures carried out by us and on the basis of information and
explanations provided by the management we are of the opinion that the company has not
defaulted in repayment of dues to bznks / Financial Institutions or Debenture Holders, The
company does not have any borrowings from government.

Ix)  Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the term loans
taken by the company have been uldima tely utilised for the purposc for which they were
taken. Further, the company has nut raised any funds by way of initial / further public uffer.

X) Based on the audit procedures performed by us for the purpose of reporting the true and fair
view of the financial statements and as per the information and explanations given to us by
the management, we report that we have neither come across any instance of fraud by the
company or on the company by its officers or employees, noticed or reported during the vear,
nor have we been informed of any such case by the management.

xi}  According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not paid any
managerial remuneration during the year and hence the reporting requirements under
clause (xi) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

xii) The company is not a Nidhi Company and hence the reporting requirements under clause
(xii) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

xiii] According to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions entered into by
the company with related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 178 of the Act
where applicable and the details therzof have been disclosed in the financial statements as
required by the applicable accounting standards.

xiv] The company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully
or partly canvertible debentures during the year under audit.

xv)  As per the information and explanations provided to us, the company has not entered into
any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them.

xvi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company is
hot required to be registered under Section 45 - IA of the Reserve Bank of India, 1934.

For MKPS & Assaciates
Chartered Accountants
FRN 302014E

ke arendra Khandal
Partner
No. 065025

Mumbai, April 14,2017 TSN,

e
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Annexure - B to the Independent Auditors Repaort
Referred to in para 8 of our report of even date, to the members of TD Toll Road Private
Limited for the year ended March 31, 2017

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of TD Toll Road Private
Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2017 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Interna! Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit nf
internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the
Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasanable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
Internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial contrels over finarcial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and cvaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error,

We believe that the audit evidence we have ohtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

——
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2] provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary o permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are heing made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of
the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or dispositicn of the company's assets that could have a material
cttect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of interral financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate,

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2017, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For MKPS & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FREN 302014E _—

{_eANarendraRtiandal
Partner
No. 065025

Mumbai, April 14,2017
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TO TOLL ROAD PRIVATE LIMITED
Balance Shoot

o ¥ Millions
Particulars As at AB at As at
Mot March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
ASSETS
Non-current agsscts
(&) Intangible assets 4 AT6D B3 3805 41 aAz6 43
{h) Financizl Assets
Other Financial Assols il 18,36 31063 A1 Ll
{5} Dofoned lax assels (nat) a7 s 26 BH 16877
{d} Dher non - currant assets & 0.51 0.5 0,544
Current assots
ta) Financlal Assats
{i) Caszh and cash equivalonls 5a 34,12 IE.N 14.83
(i} Bank balunces other than (i) above ] - 5.00 500
(i} Cther financial assot 5 61.59 6269 7022
IB) Current Tax Assets (Net) 9.61 IS_ST 5.85
(e} Cher currenl assets 7 3.28 1|Ei.f_|1 1B.38
Total Assots A3B6.48 A480.34 4525.53
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
(2) Equity share capital -] 107 .45 10745 107.45
(e} Subordinated debl (in nature of Eoulty) Ha 152.50 142 50 137.50
o] Qiher aquity g 533.26 T65.25 97 2.01
Total Equity B93.21 1015.20 1216.96
LIABILITIES
Nen-current liabilities
|8} Financial Liabilities
{iy Borrowings 10 2673.85 283405 29311.26
Lty Cher financial liabilities 12b - 2B.94 2392
(b} Provisions 13b 228 1.35 435,85
Current liabilities
(=) Financial Liabilities
(i} Trade payabios 11 42 B1 23.77 14.88
{iiy Cther financial liabilites 12a 194 54 ap.52 6452
{b} Cther current liabilites 14 5093 07 544
(&) Pravisions 13a 740.97 &7 0.04
Total Equity and Liabilitics 4553.80 4647 6B 4692.87

I'he sccompanying summary of significant accounting palicies and oine

This 15 the Balance Shest refered Lo in our repon of aven dato.
For MKPS & Associales

Charlered Accountanis
Firm's Hogn, Mo, 3020145

/ - e
ndra Khandal
\ —"fEEr:r
bership Ne. - IBS025
Date: Apnl 14, 2017
Plaze: Mumbai

For and on behalf of the Board

Kaushik Pal
Director
DIN:DE237230

Date: Aprl 14, 2017
Flace. Mumbai

r explanatory informiaion (notes) are an inlegral par of the Financial Statomeants

Anirudh Mohta
Chief Financlal Officer

—

Anirudh Dharwadkar
Company Senratary
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TD TCOLL ROAD PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of Profit and Loss

T Millions
; Year ended Year ended

P I

Articwiare Mo March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016

|

Revanue from Operations 15 331.45 290.14
Cther Income 15 50,39 58.94
Total Incame 381.88 350.08
Expanses

Tall Operation and Maintainence expenses 17 143.63 207.08

Emplayea benafits expense 18 12.57 B.20D

Finance costs . 18 360.98 380 97

Amoriization expensc 4q 35.58 2577

Other expenses 20 13.38 17.32
Total expenses i 5B86.15 B, .54
Profit / (loss) before tax (184.27) (298.26)
Tax expense

Current lax 0.39 3.37

Deferred tax charge/{credit) (53.26) {94.83)
Profit/(Loss) for the period (IX + Xi) {131.40) (206.79)

Other Comprehensive Incoma

(i) ltems that will not be reclassified

to profit or loss
Remeasuraments of net defined (0.92) [ 0.06
benefit plans : Gains / (Loss)

(it} Income tax relating to items that will not
be reclassified to profit or loss

Remeasurements of net defined benefit plans (0.32) 0.02
Other Comprehensive Income for the year {0.60) 0.04
Total Comprehensive Income for the year {132.00) = (206.76)

Earnings per equity share of 210 each
Basic & Diluted 26 (12.23) (19.25)

The accompanying summary of mgmﬁcant accounting policies and other explanatory infarmtaion (notes) are an intagral
part of the Financial Statements [

Thig is the Slatemnmant of Profit and Loss referad to in our report of evan date.

For MKPS & Associates ) Fer and on behalf of the Board

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Regn. Mo 302014E - -

'~Rarandra Khandal _ Kaushik Pal  Madal Biyani Knirudh Mohta A

Artner \I Dirtactor Direct Chief Financial 1-0&:‘,

Membership No. : 0B5025 | \ DIN:05237230  DIN:07%30371 ‘\1_{

Uate: April 14, 2017 Date: April 14, 2017 . s

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai Anirudh Dharwa

Company Secrelary
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T TOLL ROAD PRIVATE LIMITED
Cash flow Statement

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2017

A CASBH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Profit before exceptional items and tax
Adfustmants for

Amortisation expenses
Interast income
Dividend income
Interest expanse

Cash Generatad from Operations before
working capilal changes
Auhrsfrnents for

{Increaselidecreass in finanual asso13 axcept for invastmienls
{Incrasselidecrease in gther currant assets
Increasefidecreasa) in trade payables

Incraaseddecrease) i other financial liablitiss
Incressei{decresse) in pravigions

Incregsefidecraasa) in ather currend liabilities

Cash generated from operations
Taxes (pawd] nel of refunds

Net cash generated from operating activities - [A]

B CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING AGTIVITIES:

Purchzsedsale proceeds of intangibla assets (including imangible assast under

developrrent)
Purchase of curent investmenis {net of procasds)
Interest receved
Mt cash (used in) | generated from }lfventing activitios - [B]

C CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from Sub-dett
Repayment of lang term barowings
Interast paid

Wet cash used in financing activities - [C)

Net increased(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents - [A+B+C]
Add: Cash and cash equivalents at the boginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Components of Cash and cash equivalonts
Balances with benks - in Current accounts
Deposis with maturity of less than three manths
Cash on hand

Total Cash and cash eqguivalents

2 Millions.

Year ended
March 31, 2018

(184.27) {298.26)
KL [ LT
{45.01) (50.15)
(114} (067
50,958 88 97
166,13 57.65
141.04 17287
1273 237
18,84 B.89
0,74 178
G6.21 15420
{0.14) 0.63
268.45 B 340.42
424 58 IE.0OT
(B.43) {1.0%)
428,16 386,58
2.5 (5.65)
1.14 0a7
0.31 -
387 {5.02)
10.00 5.00
{56.72) (B4.45)
(324 23} 1334 38)
{410 85) 1393 B6)
2117 {1.85)
12394 14 83
.12 12 84
523 3.84
28 B
108 0 &5
34,12 12.54

Motz The abava Statement of Cush Flows hag been prapared under the ‘Indirect Mathod' as set oul in Ind AS T, "Statement of Cash Flows',

Iz accompanying summary of significant sccounting polices and oiher explanatory informlzion (notes) are an integial purl of the Fingncial

Statements

Thig is he Cash Flow Statermant rafermad to in our report of even data.

For MKPS & Assoclates
Chartarad Accountants
Finm's Regn, Mo. 302014E

—

[ __Margndra Khandal
Paftnar
emoership No. ; 065025

Date: Aprll 14, 2017 4
Place, Mumbai

For and on behall of the Board
~

Eaushilc Pal 'ﬁaﬂa : iyani
Director Direct
DIN: 05237230 DINOT30371

Data: April 14, 2017
Place; Mumbai

L =
Anirudh Ma%ﬁ__:; 5

Chief Financi L \Err

-

Anirudh Dharwadkar
Company Secretary
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TD TOLL ROAD PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of Changes in Equity

A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

Membership Mo, : 065025

Date. April 14, 2017
Place: Mumhbaij

DIN:D5237230

Date: April 14, 2017
Place: Mumkbai

DIN:0FR30371

£

Anirudh Dharwadkar
f}?m pany Secratary

T Milllons
Balance at the Changes in Balance at the end
Partfcolim beginning of the qulity sha.re of the year
year capital during
the vear
For the year ended March 31, 2018 107 .45 [ - 107.45
For the year ended March 31, 2017 107.45 - 107 45
B. OTHER EQUITY T Millions
- g |
Reserves and Surplus
i iti inet
Particulars Secur! = Retal_ned Total
Premium Earnings
Resarva (Mote 9b)
{(Note 9c)

Balance at April 01, 2015 967.15 4.86 arz.o
Profit for the year (206.79) {206.79)
Other comprehensive income for the year 0.04 __D.04

Total comprehensive income for the year - (206.76) (206.78)

Transaction with owners in their capacity as owners :

Issue of equity shares -
Dividend Paid .
= | - -

Balance at March 31, 2018 967.15 {201.90) 765.25

Balance at April 01, 2016 967.15 (201.90) 765.25
Profit for the year {131.40) {131.40)
Other comprehensive income for the year (0.60) {0.60)

Total comprehensive income for the year - {132.00) (132.00)

Transaction with owners in their capacity as owners
Issue of equity shares -
Dividend Paid -

Balance at March 31, 2017 967.15 (333.89) 633.26

This is statement of change of equity referred to in our report of even date.

For MKPS & Associates For and on behalf of the Board

Chartered Accountants —

Firm's Regn. Mo, 302014E ?\ R

-~
el
> st , L
___Nagéndra Khandal Kaushik Pal Mada ﬁi;abl Anirudfi Mohta
Partner Director Direct [ Chief Financial Officer
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TD TOLL ROAD PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 1: Corporate information

TD Tall Road Private Limited was awarded on Build, Operate and Transfer (BOT) basis strengthening of
the existing carriageway from Km. 333 to Km. 421.60 on the Trichy — Dindigul section of MNational
Highway Ma. 45 in the State of Tamil Nadu and widening thereof to 4 lanes and its improvement,
cperation and maintenance under thz Concession Agreement dated July 19, 2007 with National
Highways Authority of India. The Concession Agreement is for a period of 30 Yyears from January 15,
2008, being the appaointed Dale stated in clause 1.1 of the said agreement. The Company has starled
Tell Colleclion we f 11-01-2012. )

Note 2: Basis of preparation

The Financial Statermants of Company comiprises of Balance Sheets as at March 31, 2017 and March 31,
2016 Statement of Profit and Loss, Cash Flow Statement and Staternant aof Changes in Eqguity for tha
year ended March 31, 2017 and March 31, 2016 and Statement of Met Aszats at Fair Value as at March
31, 2017 and the Staterment of Total Return at fair value for the year ended March 31, 2017, & summary of
significant accounling policies, notes and other explanatary Information.

The Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Actounting
Standards (Ind AS) as prescribed under Seclion 133 of Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant rules and
other accounting principles, The Financial Statements have been preparad on g historical cost basis,
axcept for certain assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value,

For year ended March 31, 2017 and March 31, 2018, the Company prepared its financial statements in
accordance with accounting standards nofified under the Section 133 of the Cormpanias Act 2013 (the Act)
[Companies(indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 201 5] and other relevant provisions of the act, For the
purpose of preparation of these Financial Statements, the transition date to Ind AS is considered as April
1, 2015 for the Company,

The Financial Statements are presented in ¥ Millions, except where otherwise indicated,
Accounting standards issued but not yet effective

Ind AS 115 'Revenue from contracts with customers’ have been published by Ministry of Corporate Affairs
(MCA) but are not yet effective. Ind AS 115 establishes principles for reporting useful information to users
of the financial statements about the nature, amount. timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows
ariging from an entity’s contract with customers. Ind AS 115 supersedes other revenue standards i.e. Ind
AS 11 and Ind AS 18 natified by MCA. Management has undertaken an assessment of the impact of this
standard and does not believe that the impact would be material, '

Mote 3: Summary of Significant accounting policies

31

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current! non-current
classification,

An asset is reated as current when it is:

=  Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

*  Expected to be realised within twelve months afler the reporting period, ar

*  Cash or cash equivalent unless restrictad from being exchanged or usaed to scttle a liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period

Ml other azzets are classified as non-currant,
A liabitity is current when,

* Itis expecied lo be settied in normal operating cycle

*  ltis due to be settled within twelve months after the repeorting period, or

* There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least lwelve months after
the reparting pariod

T

All other habilities are clagsifieg as non-current,
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as noen-current assets and liabilities,

The operating cycle is the time between the acguisition of assets for processing and their realization in
cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle,

3.2 Foreign currencies

Functional and presentation currency Jyr

Hems included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the enlity operates {'the functional currency’). The financial statemants
are presenled in Indian Rupaes (3} in Milions, which is the Company's functional and presentation
currency. -

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are lranslated intn the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dales of tha transactions. Fureign exchange gains and Iosses resulting lrem the
sattiement of such lransactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assats
and liabllities denominated in forelgn currencies are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss with an
exception of the following:-

Under Ind AS 21 exchange differences arising on the translation/settiement of non-monetary item should
be treated as income or loss in Statement of Profit and Loss. However, Ind AS 101 gives an exemption for
existing lung term foreign currency rnon-monetary items wherein the Company can continue the policy
adopted for treatment of exchange differences arising on leng-term foreign currency monetary items
pertaining to the acquisition of a depreciable asset for items recognized on or befare March 31, 2013,

For any new long term foreign currency non-monetary item recognized from or after first Ind AS financial
reporting period, deferralfamortization of exchange difference will not be allowed, rather the Company will
apply Ind AS 21 for recognition of gains and losses |

3.3 Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an as=et or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption thal the transaction to sell the asset or fransfer the liability takes place sither:

* Inthe principal market for the asset or iability, or
* Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset ar liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an assel or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economid best interest.

A fair value measurement of & non-financial asset takes into account a market parficipant's ability to
penerate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valualion techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measura fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing
the use of uncbscrvable inpuls.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial slalements are
categorized within the fair valug hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that Is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whale:

Level 1 - Quaoted {unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assels or liabilities
Level 2- Waluation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement Is directly or indirectly observable

Leval 3 -Maluation technigues for which the lowest leval input that is significant to the fair value
measurament is unobservable

For assels and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfors have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whale) at the end of
each reporting period. e e

—

e s———

g
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a4

3.5

The Company's Management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring and non —
recurring fair value measurement, such as derivative instruments and unquated financial assets measured
at fair value,

At each reporting date, the Management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilitios
which are required to be re-measured or re-assessed ag per the Company's accounting policies. For this
analysis, the Management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the
information in the valuation computation ta contracts and other relevant docurments. I

The management also compares tha change in the fair value of each asset and liahiflity with relevant
exlernal sources to determine whether the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has datermined classes of aszets and liabilities on
the basis of the nature, characterislics and risks of the assat or liability and the level of the fair value
higrarchy as explained above. r

This note summarizes accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in tha
relevant notes.

Disclosures for valualion methads. significant estimates and assumplions of Financial instruments
{including those carried at amortised cost) \note 2 1} and Quantitative disclosures of fair value
measurcment hierarchy (note 223,

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of tha consideration received or receivable. The Company
recognizes revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured; when it is probable that future
econermic benefits will flow to the entity; and when specific criteria have been met for the Company's
aclivilies, as described below.

Toll revenue

The income from tall revenue from operations of the facility is accounted on receipt basis,

Contract revenue (construction contracts)

Contract revenue associaled with the construction of road are recognized as revenue by reference 1o the
stage of completion of the projects at the balance sheet date. The stage of completion of project is
determined by the proportion that contract cost incurred for work performed up to the balance sheet date
bears to the estimated total contract costs.

Contract cost includes costs that relate direstly to the specific contract and allocated costs that are
attributable to the construction of the toll roads. Cost that cannot be attributed te the contract activity such
as general administration costs are expensed as incurred and classified as othar operating expenses.

Others

Insurance and other claims are recognized as ravenue on certainty of receipt basis, |

|
Income on investment is recognized based on tha tarms of the investment. Income from mutusl fund
scheme having fixed maturity plans is accounted on declaration of dividend or on maturity of such
investments. Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount
putstanding and the rates applicable. For all other financial assets measured at amortized cost interest
income is recorded using the Effective Interest Rata (EIR). |

Accounting of intangible assets under service concession arrangement

Company has Toll Road Concession rights where it Designs, Builts, Finances, Operates and Transfers
(RBFOT) infrastructure used to provide pubiic service for a spacified period of time. These arrangements
may include Infrastructure used in & public-to-private service concession arrangement for its entire useful
life:,

These arrangements are accounted for based on the nature of the consideration. The inlangible asset
model is used to the extent that the Company receives a righl {a license) to charge users of the public
sarvice. The financial assel model is used when the Company has an unconditional contractual right to =
receive cash or another financial asset from or at the direction of the grantor for the construction selrrgi;:és:
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When the uncenditional right to receive cash covers only part of the service, the two models are combined
to account separately for each component, If the Company performs more than ane servica {i.e.,
construction or upgrade services and operation services) under a single contract or arrangement,
consideration received or receivable is allccated by reference to the relative fair values of the services
delivered, when the amounts are separalely identifiable.

Intangible assets model

Intangible assets arising out of service concession arrangements are accounted for as intangible assets
where the Company has a contractual right lo charge users of service when the projects are completad.
Apart from above per the service concession agreement the Company is obligated to pay the amount of
premium lo National Highways Authority of India (NHAI). This premium abligation has been beated as
Intangible azset given it is paid towards getting the right to eam revenue by construcling and operating the
roads during the concession period.

Hence, the total premium payable to the Grantor as per tha Service Concession Agreement iL also
racognized as an 'Inlangible Assats’ and the corresponding obligation for committed premium is
recognized as premium obligation. .

|
The intangible assels is measured at the feir value of consideration transfarred to acquire assel, which is
the fair value of consideratidn received or rzceivahle for the construction senvices delivered.

Amortization of concession intangible assets

The Intangible assel recognized are amortized over the concession period on the basis of projected toll
ravenue which reflects the pattern in which the assets economic benefits are consumed, The projected
total toll revenue is based on the independent traffic volume projections; Amortization is revised in case of
any material change in the expected pattem of economic benefils. Refer note no 23 far description and
significant terms of the concession agreemants.

Financial assets model

The financial asset model applies when the operator has an unconditional right to receive cash or another
financial asset from the grantor in remuneration for concession services In the case of concession
services, the operator has such an unconditional right if the grantor contractually guarantees the payment
of amount specified or determined in the cantract or the shortfall, if any, betwaen amounts received from
users of public service and amounts specifiad or determined in the Contract.

Financial Assets resuiting from application of Appendix A and Appendix B of Ind AS 11 are recorded in the
statement of financial position under the heading Other Finaneial Assets and recognized at amortised cost,

However in case of certain arrangements, the contract may include a payment commitment an the part of
the concession grantor covering only part of investment, with the balance to be recovered from by charging
users of service . In such arrangements the investment amount guarantead by the cnnnessior grantor is
recognized under the financial assel model and the residual balance is recognized under the|Intangible
assaf model,

Any asset carried under concession arrangements is derecognized on dispasal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from ils fulure use or disposal or whan the contractual rights to the
financial assel expire.

Maintenance obligations

Contractual obligations to maintain, replace or restore the infrastructure (principally resurfacing costs and
major repairs and unscheduled maintenancs which are raquirad to maintain the Infrastructure asset in
operational condition except for any enhancement element) are recognized and measured at the besl
estimate of the expanditure required to setlla the present obligation at the balance shest date for which
next resurfacing would be required as per the concession arrangement. The provision is discounted to its
present value at a pre-tax rale that reflects current market assessments of the lime value of maney and the
risks specific to the liability.

Taxes
Current income tax

Currant income tax assels and liabilities are measured al the amaount expected to ba recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compule the amount are those that are
enacted or subslantively enacted at the reporting date in the countries where the Company operates and
generales laxable income. Current income tax relating to items recognized outside the Statement of Profit
and Loss is recognized outside the Statement of Profit and Loss (either in other comprehensive inﬂ/ﬂ?{_
I
H

in equity). Current tax items are recognized in comrelation to the underlying transaction either in OC
— LI
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directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with réspem to
situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to inlerpretation and establishes provisions where
appropriale

Deferred tax

Defernad tax is provided using the batance shept approach on temporary differances I:retwaei the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reparting
date.

Deterred tax liabilities and assets are recognized for all taxable temporary differences

Neferred tax assels are recognized for unused tax lossas to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the daductible temporary diffarences, and the carry forward of unused tax
Insses can be ulilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewad at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred lax assats are re-assessed at sach reporting date and are
recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax
assat to be recovered. |

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in :tho year

when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates {and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized cutside the Statement of Profit and Loss is recognized outside
the Statement of Profit and Loss (either in other comprehensiva income or in equity). Deferrep tax items
are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. |

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilites are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate fo the same taxable entity and
the same taxation authority

37 Borrowing costs

Homrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as
part of the cosl of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur,
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an enlity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extant regarded as an adjustment to the
bommowing costs,

38 Leases

Operating lease payments are recognized 25 an operating expense in the income statement on a straight
line basis over the lease term.

2.9 Premium Deferment

Fremium Deferral (i.e. premium payable less paid after adjusting premium deferment) is aggregated under
premium deferred obligation in the balance sheet. The interest payable on the above is aggregated under
deferred premium obligation. Interest on premium deferral is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

310 Contingent liakilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation thal arises from past evenls whose existence will be confirmad
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the conliol of the
Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable thal an outflow of
resourcas will be required to setlle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases
whara there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured refiably. The conlingant
liability is not recognized in the baoks of account but its existence is disclosed in the Financial Statements

3.1 Impairment of non-financial assets

MNen-financial assets are tested for impairment whenever avents or changes in circumstances indicaledfat
the carrying amount may sotfEsscoverable, An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by thi-
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asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset's fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there zre separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely .
independent of the cash inflows from other assats or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-
financial assets that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of
aach reporting period. |

2.12Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or consiructive) as a result of
a past cvent, il iz probable that an oulllow of rescurces embodying aconamic benelils will ba [required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation, When the
Company expacts some or all of & provision to be reimbursed the reimbursement is recognized as a
separate asset, bul only when the reimburscment is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is
presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss net ol any reimbursement.

I the etfect of the time value of money is material, provisione are discounted using a current pre-tax rale
thal reflects. when appropriale, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in
the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost,

3.13 Employee benefits

(i} Short term abligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-manetary benefits that are expected to be settled whally
within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are
recognized in respect of employees’ serices up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at
the amounts expected o be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current
employee banefit obligations in the balance sheet,

(i} Leave obligations
The Company provides sick leave and privilege leave to its employess.

Privilege and sick leave obligation is provided based on actuarial valuation which takes into account
the estimated portion of leave that will be encashed, availed and the portion that will lapse. The
portion that is expected to be encashed is provided for based on the basic salary of the employee and
for the portion that is expected to be avalled, the valuations are based on the employees’ total
compensation. The liability for earned leave is also classified as current where it is expected to be
availed! encashed during the next 12 manths. The remaining portion is classified as non-cumment. The
amounts of current and non-current liability are based on actuarial estimates,

(iii) Post - employment obligations

The Company operates various post-employment schemes, including
(a) defined benefit plans such as gratuity
(b} defined contribution plans such as provident fund.

Gratuity Obligations

The liability or asset recognized in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuily Flans iz
the present value of the defined benefit cbligation at the end of the reparting period less the fair
value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by independent actuarics
using the projected unit credit method,

The present value of the defined benefit phligation is determined by discounting the estimated future
cash cuttlows by teference lo market yields at the end of the reparting period on government bonds
thal have tarms approximating to tha termis of the related ubiligation,

Ihe net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined
banefit ebligation and Lhe fair value of plzn assels. This cost is included in employee bensfit expense
in the statement of profit and loss

assumptions are recognized in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive

Re-measurement gains and losses arising from exparience adjustments and changes in actuarial
income. They are included In retained eamings in the statement of changes in equity and in r/

e
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balance sheet,

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or
curtaiiments are recognized immediately in profit or loss as past service cost,

Cefined Contribution plans

The Company pays provident fund contributions to publicly administered provident funds as per local
regulations. The group has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid.
The contributions are accounted for as defined contribution plans and the centributions are
recognized as employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognizad
ag an asset to the extent that a cash refurd or a reduction in the future payments iz available.

3.14 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheel comprise cash at banks and on hand and s ort-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject lo an insignificant risk of
changes in value,

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consisl of cash and short-term
deposits, as defined above, net of autstancing bank overdrafls as they are considered an integral part of
lhe Companys cash managerment.

3.15 Derivatives

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value on the date a derjvative contract is entered into and are
subsequently re-measured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period.

3.16 Trade Payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for coods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers, Accounts payasle are classified as current liabilities if paymeant is due within
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as
non-zurrent liabilities,

Trade payables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cosl using
the effective interest method,

3.17 Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
or equity instrument of ancther entity.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair
value through Statement of Profit and Loss, net of directly stiributable transaction cost to the acquisition of
the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame
established by regulation or convention in the markst place (regular way lrades) are recognized on the
trade dale, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

For purpuses of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following calegories;
= al amorhrad cost

= atfair value through profit or loss (FWTPL)

*  atfair value through other comprehensive income (FYTOCH

Financial Assets at amortized cost
Financial assets are measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose cbjective is to hold assets for collecting contractual
cash flows, and

b} Cenfractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dales to cash flows that are solaly paymenhf}j; e
principal and interest {(SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding, ,;/

—

£
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This category is the most relavant to the Company. All the Loans and other receivables under financial
assels (except Invesiments) are non-derivalive financial assets with fixed ar determinable paymenis that
are not quoted in an active market.

After initial measurement such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
Eftective Interest Rate (EIR) method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discaunt or
premium on scguisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR, The EIR amortization is
included in finance income in the Staterment of Profit and Loss. The losses arising from impairment are

recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. This category generally applies to loans and other
reccivables.

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Statement of Profit and Loss/Other Comprehensive Income

All investments in scope of Ind AS 108 are measured at fair valie, Companys has investment in Mutual
fund which are held lor trading, are classified as at FVTEL, The Company makes such election on an
instrument by instrument basis The classificalion i=s made on Initial recognition and Is irrevocable.

|
If the Company decides to classify an instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the Other Compirehensive Income. There |s no recycling
of the amounts fram Other Comprehensive Income (OC1) to the Statement of Profit and Loss|, even on sale
of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within aquity. | Instruments
included within the FVTPL calegory are measured al fair valus with all changes recognized in the
Slatement of Profit and Less.

De-recognition [

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognized (i.e, removed from the Company's balance sheet) whan:

The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

The Company has transterred its rights to rzceive cash flows from the asset or has assumead an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a "pass-through'
arrangement; and either (a) the Company Has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, or (b} the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
assat, bul has transferred control of the asset,

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows fram an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of
ownership. Whean il has neither transferrad nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the
asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognize the transferred asset to the
extent of the Company's continuing involvement, In that case, the Company also recognizes an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the assoclated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights
and obligations that the Company has retained.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward Iooking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assels
carried at amartised cost and FYOC!. The Impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk.

I'he Company has three types of inancial assets subject to Ind AS 10%'s expected credit loss model:
= Loans receivables measured at amorised cost

= Retantions recsivable, grant recaivable fram NHA

*  Loans given lo employees

The impairment methodology for each class of financial assets stated above 15 as follows:

Loans receivables measured at amortized cost: Loans receivables at amortized cost are generally shorl

term in nature considered to be low risk, and thus the impairment provision is determined as 12 months
expected credit losses.

Loans given tg employees: For loans given to employees outstanding as on the reporting dalles, the has
determined reliably that assessing the probability of default at the initial recognition of each and aw%
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or receivable would result in undue cost and effort, As permitted by Ind AS 108, the credil provision will be
determined based on whether credi risk is low only at each reporting date, until the luan is derecognized.

Using the impairment methodology the Group has assessed that no loan loss allowance needs to be
recorded in the books of accounts. |

Expected credit loss ('ECL’) impairment iuss allowance {or reversal) recognized during the period is
recognized as income/ expense in the Stetement of Profit and Loss (P&L). This amount is reflected undar

lhe head “other expenses’ in the P&L. The balance sheet presentation for varous financial instruments is
dascribed below: F‘

Financial assels measured as at amortized cost and ather contractual revenue recelvables - ECL is
prescnted as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance
sheel. The allowance reduces tha net carrying amount. Until the assel maets writo-off criteria, tha
Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the Qrass carrying amaount,

Financial Liabllities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through Statement
of Profit and Loss, loans and borrowings, trade payables or other payahles.

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value.

The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, Ioans and borrowings including bark
ovardrafts and other payables, [

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Loans and borrowings

This is the calegory most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR method. However, the Companys
has borrowings at fleating rates. The impact of restaterment of effective interest rate, year on year due to
reset of interest rate, is not material. Gains and losses are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss
when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the transaction cost amortization process

Retention money payable

This is the category most relevant to the Company. Retention money are measured at Fair valua initially
Subsequently, they are measured at amort zed cost using the EIR (Effective interest rate) method. Gains
and lesses are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as
through the EIR amortization process,

De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability iz discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on shibstantially
differant terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an excharige or
madification is treated as the de-racognition of the original liability and the recognition of & new liahility,
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments !

Financial assets and inancial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reparted in the balance sheel if

there is a cumenlly enforceabla legal right to offsel the recognized amounts and there is an intention Lo
sellle on a net basis, to realize the assets and sellle the liahilities simultancously.

Darivative financial instruments
Initial recognition and subsequent meas urement

The Company uses dervative financial instruments —principal only swaps to hedge its foreig currency T
risks. Such derivative financialinstruments are initially recognized at fair value on the date oh which lf’

e
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derivalive contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives ara carried
as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is nagaftive.

Any gains o losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken direclly to Slatemant of
Profit and Loss.

Segment information

The Gompany Is engaged in "Read Infrastructure Project” which in the context of Ind AS 108 "Operating
Segment” is considered as the only segment. The Company's activities are restricted within India and
hence, no separate gecgraphical segment disclosure is considered necessary. |

Critical accounting estimates and judgments |
Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical expeniance and other

tactars, including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on thae antity and that are
balieved to be reasoneble under the circumstances. |

The Campany makes eslimates and assumptions concerning tha future. The resulting accounting estimates
will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a

significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities are disclosad
Delow.

(i) Applicability of service concession arrangement accounting to toll roads concessionaire
arrangaments

The Company has determined that Appendix A of Ind AS 11 ‘Service concession arrangements' is
applicable lo the Company which provides on accounting by the operators for public-to-private service
concession arrangements. The Company has entered into cencession arrangement with NHAI as per which
the group would participate in the Design, Build, Finance, Operate and Transfer (DEBFOT) basis the toll
roads infrastructure, After the end of the concession arrangement, the Company has to transfer the
infrastructure i.e. toll roads constructed to National Highway Authorities of India {MNHAL.

Accerdingly Cempany has recognized the intangible assets recognized as per the accounting policy
mentioned in Note no 3.5 ‘Accounting of intangible assets under service concessionaire arranbernent'.

|
{ii} Income taxes

The Company has recognized deferred tax assets relating to carried forward tax losses to the extent there
are sufficient taxable tamporary differences relating to the same taxation authority against which the unused
tax losses can be utilized. However, the utilization of tax losses also depends on the ability of the Company
to salisfy certain tests at the time the losses are recouped, Management has forecasted future taxable
profils and has herefore recognized deferred tax assets in relation lo tax Inszes

{iiijAmortization of concession intangible assets

The Intangible asset recognized are amortized over the concession period on the basis of projected toll
revenue which reflects the pattern in which the assets economic benefils are consumed, The projected total
toll revenue is based on the independent traffic volume projections; Amartization is revised in case of any
material change in the expacted pattern of economic benefits.

{iv} Impairment of concession Intangiblc assets

Tha Company tests intangible assets and cash generating units have suffered any impairment, in
accordance with the accounting policy stated in note 3.11. The recoverable amount of each cash
generating unit has been determined based on the greater of value-in-use and fair value less costs 1o scll
calculalions. These calculations require the use of assumplions regarding traffic flows, discount rates,
growth rates and other factors affecting operating activities of tha cash generating units. ,

f
(v} Fair valuation of derivatives and othaer financial instruments
The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation

technigues. The Company uses its judgmerits to sclect a variely of methods and makes assumptions thad=""=-.
are mainly based on market condilions existing at cach balance shest date,
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(vi} Provision for resurfacing obligation {major maintenance expenditure)

The Company records the résun‘acing chligation for its present obligation az per the concession
arrangement to maintain the toll roads at every five years during the concession period. The provision is
included in the financial statements at the present value of the expected fulure payments, The calculations
to discount these amounts to their present value are based on the estimated timing of expenditure ocCurring
an the roads,

The discount rate used to valua the resurfacing provision at its present value is dotermined through
referenca to the nature of provision and risk associated with the expenditure.
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Note 4 - Intangible assets (including intangible assets under development) T Millions
T III Collectio
i [s] olecton

Particulars sights
MNet carrying amount as at April 1, 2015 3,825.43
Year ended March 31, 2018
Opening gross carrying amount 2,800.81
Additions 5.75
Capitalised B
Closing grass carrying amount 3,906.56
Accumulated amortization and impairment
Opening accumulated amortization and impairment | 75.38
Amartization charge for the year 2577
Capitalized
Closing accumulated amortization and impairment 101.15
Net carrying amount 3,805.41
Year ended March 31, 2017
Cpening gross carrying ameount 3,806.56
Additions - .00
Capitalised
Closing gross carrying amount 3 I 3,006.56
Accumulated amortization and impairment
Opening accumulated amortization and impairment 11.15
Amaortization charge for the year 35.58
Capitalised )
Closing accumulated amortization and impairment 135'?1_.
MNet carrying amount 3,769.83
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Mote 5 - Financial Assets - Current

T Millions
T
Particulars As at As al
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 | April 1, 2015
Note 5 (a) - Cash and Cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents
Balancas with hanks |
- in currend aocounts 523 JiB4 13.86
Deposits with matuily of less than three monihs V.80 8.25
Cash on hand 1.09 0.85 0,97
3412 12.394 14.83
Mate: & () - Other bank balancos
Dwpsils with matirity of more than three manthe but less §an - 5.00 500
twelve months
= 5.00 5.00
Mote § (¢} - Other financial assels - current
Grant receivable from MHAI 55.25 H1.58 68, 21
Security dapasits 0.15 014 0.15
Interesl acoiued on fixed depositz - 010 012
Others .60 [ 56 0 64
Claims Recelvable from Ml 5.58 - -
61.59 6268 70.22
= ke
Note § {_ci} Movement on Grant recelvable from NHAI
As al beginning of the year ar2.51 485(81 58697
Accrued Interest 4470 58130 ToA4
Repayment of Grani 171.60 171.60 171.60
As atend of the year 245 81 A72.51 485,84
Mon - Current 190.38 31063 416.50
Current 5525 G1.88 6931
Noto 6 (d) - Other financial assets - Non - current
Grant receivable from WNHAI 190.36 M0 E3 416.50
190.36 310.63 416.50
Note & - Othor non-current assets
Gratuity Agvance 0.51 osr 0.54
0.51 0|51 0.54
Note T - Other current assots
Advaence to vendors 048 13.55 1.2D
Advance (o employees 0.38 0.30 0.36
Prepaid Expenses 220 1.98 1.51
Duties and taxes raceivable 0.21 0.21 1523
3.28 16.01 18.38
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Note & - Share Capital and Other equity

Mote §a - Authorised Share Capital

Particulars Mos of Shares
ALthe beginning of the year 1.20,00,000
Add  Inciease during the year al 10 =ach
Abthwe end of the pear
Mole 8b - Issued, subscribed and paid-up equity
share capital
At the beginning of the: yoar 1.0¢ 44 B30
Acdd | Bhares l3gued during the yess al #10 =ach

Al the end of the year

Nalé: 8« - Terms and rights attached to equity shares

Tha Company has anly one class of shares refered ko as Equity Sharee having o Par Velue of e 10/

Note Bd - Reconciliation of nos of Shares
News of Shares al the beginning of the wear
Add  Mos of Shares |ssued dunng the year
Mos of Shares al the end of the year

Mot e - Shares held by holding Company ! ultimate holding
Company or their subsidiaricsiassociales

Refance Infrastinecture Limided
{immediate and Ultimate Holding Compary)

Mate 8F - Detalls of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Retiance Infrastructure Limited
Mos of Shares
% of hodding

Space Trade Enterprises Private Limited
MNos of Shares
T of halding

Trustee : Space Trade Enterprises Private Limited{ Trust: Reliance Toll Road Trust)

MNos of BShares
%o of halding

Spice Commerce and Trade Private Limited
Mos of Shares

% ot holding

Skyline Global Trade Private Limited

Moz of Sheres

% of holding

The Company has pledged 3,223,476 Equity Shares for availing various temm loans.

ol . ¥ Millians
As at A at Az at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
120.00 120.00 1230 06
12000 120,00 12000
107 45 107 45 107 45
107.45 107 45 107,45
1,07 44,320 |,07,44,820 1,07 44,520
1,07 .44 820 1,07 44 820 1,07, 44,870
1.07 44 020 5285011 52,85.011
1,07 44 920 5265011 52,685,011
100.00% 48,00 A8 00%
o 175 1754845
- 18 33 18.33%
= F14820 214845
2 00% 2.00%
- 17,558,720 17,585,720
1E.24% 18,348
- 1radA4s 1754645
16.35% 165.33%
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£ Millions
Az at As at As at
March 31, 2017 315t March, 2016 April 1, 2015
Naole 9a - Sub-ordinated dobt {in nature of aquily)
Al the beginning of lwe year 142 .50 137.6D
Increase [ (decrease) during the year 10.00 5.00
At the end of the vear 152.50 e 142 50 137.50

Torms and rights attached te Sub-ordinated debts Infusad by Sponsor alongwith its Subsidiarias
I} Subardinated debl is the part of Equity fram lhe promaters of The Cumpany for the praject, which is unsacured and

Common | oan Agrecment with the landears-
i} Nu repaymantiredempticninlerest senvicing allawed dwing the meratardum period of the long

Mate 8h - Retained Earnings

term project loan. |

|
inlerest free as per

AL the beginning of the year (380.24) (162.448)
Met Profit far the year (131 40y (20679 |
Mems of olher comprehansive income recognised |
dirgctly in retained carmings

- Hemessuremens of post-emplayements {0.60) 0.04

abligations [net of tax)

Dividende paid during the year -
At the end of the year 1501.23) (369.24) [162.48)
Note 8¢ - Securities Premium Account
At the beginning of the year 95715 96T 15
Fremium on shares issued during the year L -
Al the end of the year 967.15 867 .15 BET.15

Nature and purposa of sccurities pramium

Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares, The reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the act.

i
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Mote 10 - Borrowings - Mon current ¥ Millinns
Az at As at As al
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2018 April 1, 2018

Socured
Toarm loans
From banks I

Rupaa tarm loan 2.014.258 2,152.80 2.234.29
From financlal institutions

Rupee lerm loan 653.57 BAZ 05 696G 86
Tatal 2,673.85 2,834.95 | 2,521.25
Sacurnd By -

8) First maortgage and charge of all immovable properiias, present and future

9} First charge by wey of hvpathacation of all movabla aesets. bolh present and fiture, save and excapt the project Assets.

c} First charge on el intangible assets save and gxcept Project assets.

d) First Charge on receivables, book debls, cash and cash equivalents including any olber bank accounts and ofher assats, present and
future,

¢} First Charge on government approvals, insurance policies, uncalled capilal, project dosuments, guarantees, letter of credil, performance
warranties, indemnities and securilics given 1o the Company.

Repayment Terms :- The repayment of lcan has started fram 31 Dec 2011 in 50 quarterly installments and will be pald Il 30ih March 2024,

Interest Rate :- The applicable interest rale for Rupaa Term Loan varies from 10.50% 1o 12%p.a.

Note 11 - Trade Payables
Trace Payables 42.61 2377 14 .88

42.61 23,77 | 14.88

Dues to Micro and Small Entorprises

Disclosure of payable ta venders as defined under the "Micre, Smali and Madium Enterprise Developmenl Act, 2006" is based on the
information available with the Company regarding the status of registration of such vendaors under the said Act, as per the intimatien received
from them on requests made by the company. There are no overdue principal amountsfinterest payable amounts for delayed payments 1o
such vendors at the Halance Sheel date. There are no dedays in paymant made 1o such suppliers during the year ar far amy earlier yvears and
actordingly fere 15 no interest paid o sulstanding interest in this regard in respect of payments made during the year or Drought forward from
previous years.

Note 12 (a) - Other financial liabilitios - current

Current Maturitles of long term debt 181.20 95.72 64,45
Emplovee benfits payahle 2.54 1.80 0.04
Redention money payable 31.19 | =

Total 194.54 9B8.52 | 64.52

Note 12 (b} - Other financial liabilities - Non - current

Maon - Current
Relenten menay payakle = 26,594 2382
Tatal - 26.94 | 23.92
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Note 13 {a) - Provisions - Currant

& ¥ Millions
As al : As at As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015
Currant
Prevision for employon benefile
- Leave crncashment 0.08 0.05 004
Oithers
- Resurfacing axpensos T40.85 G40 82 -
740,97 B40.87 0.04
: |
Mole 13 (b} - Provisions - Mon - Current I
Frevision for employes banefits |
- Leave encashment 2.29 1.36 1.1
Olhers . |
- Resurfacing expenses - - 434 84
229 135 43585
Mavemant in Provisions
Resurfacing provisions
Abthe beginning of the year 640,82 434 g4 25565
Charged ! {creditad) to profit or lass
Provisien made during Ihe year 65,16 153.80 137,32
urwinding of discauni 34.91 5218 31.85
Al the end of the year T40.889 640 82 434 84

Resurfacing provisions - significant estimates

Az per the service concession arrangemeant with NHAI, the Praject SPY Group is obligated to carry oul resurfacing of the roads under
concession. The Project SPY Group estimates (he likely provision required towards resurfacing and acerues the costs oh a siraight line basis
ovar the pericd at the end of the which resurfacing would be required, in the Statement of Profit and Loss in accordance|with Ind &5 37
Frovigians, Contingent Liabilities ang Conlingent Assets.

Mete 14 - Other current liabilitios

Advances from Customers 476 4.77 477
Ciulies and {axes payabla 147 1.30 067

5.83 6.07 5.44
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Note 15 - Revenue

Operating income
- Income from tall collections
- Compensation towards toll suspension

Note 18 - Other income

Cividend Income on current investment

Interest income
= On financial assets carried at amortised cost
- Others

Insurance claim received

Miscellaneous income

Note 17 - Toll Operation and Maintainence expanses

Subcontracting expenses
Maintainence of Roads
Electricity expenses

Handling Charges

Site and other direct expenses

Note 18 - Employes benefits expenses

Salaries wages and bonus

Contribution to provident funds and other funds
Gratuity 3

Leave encashment

Staff welfare expenses

Note 19 - Finance Costs

Interest on loan

Unwinding of discount on provisions
Other finance charges

Unwinding of discount on retention maney

Note 20 - Other expenses

Rent

Rates & taxes

Insurance

Legal and Professional Charges
Auditors Remuneration
Iravelling and Canveyance

Other miscellaneous expenses -

. Millian_ﬁ_

Year ended
March 31, 2017

Year ended
March 31, 2016

30702 290.14
24.47 !
331.48 290 14
1,14 0.67
44 70 58.30
0.31 (.88
4.02 -
0.22 0.11
50.39 50.94
12.81 14.50
120.47 181.26
482 4.10
0.51 0.56
521 G.668
143.63 207 .08
10.33 7.14
0.47 0.30
0.14 0.09
1.40 0.40
0.22 0.27
12.57 8.20
318.81 331.78
34.91 5218
552 3.1
1.73 3.00
360.58 28097
0.20 015
017 0.09
2.69 2.91
8.48 12.51
0.73
0.23
0.88

13.38
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Mote 21 - Fair value measurements
Financial Instrumenis by category

Slgnficance of financial instruments

N . ? Millions,

|
Ag at Asg at : As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Financial assats i |
At amortised Cast |
Grant receivabla fram NHAJ 245 61 3725 485.81
Socurity Depasils 015 015 015
Fixed deposils with matunty of mora than 12 monthe - £.00 5.00
inlerest acensed on fixed dapnsils = 0.140 a.12
Insurance Claim recalvables' 0.E0 1+ 66 i1 64
Cash and Cash equivalent 341z 12.04 14.33
Claims Regoivable From NELA] 04t -
Total financial assets 288,07 39136 506.55
Financial liabilities
Al amortised Cost
Floaling Rate Rorrowings 283508 2931 .87 258574
Trade Fayables 4261 2377 14.58
Retenlion morey payable 3114 26.94 2392
Empleyes Renafits Payable 2.54 1.80 004
Tatal financial liabilities 2811.40 2964.18 3034.58

e T
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Nuote 22 - Fair value ierarchy

{a) Fair valug hierarchy - Recurring fair value measuraments

e T Millizns
As at Asg at i As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2015 April 1, 2015
Financial asscts I
At Fair value through profit & loss |
Level 1 |
Mutual furd Invesimants - -
Total financial assotg ' - - -
by Fair value higrarchy - Assets and liabilities which are measured al amortlsed cost for which fair valuas are disciosed
Financial assets
Leval 3
Aranl raceivable from NHAI 24561 KR 485 K1
Total financial assats 245.81 372.51 485.81
=‘-“=—=.,= L —— - — 3
Financial liabilitips
Level 3
Floating Rete Barrowings 2835.05 293187 2995 74
Retention meney payable 311e 26,54 2382
|
Total financial liabilities 2866.25 28958 61 3019.66

|

Recognised fair value measurements

Leval 1 Level 1 hisrarchy includes finangial Instrumants measured using quoled prices. This Includes mutual funds that have Tumeu price. The mutual
funds are valued using the clasing NAY, [

Level 2: The fair value of financial Instruments that are not tradad in an active market {for example, cver-the-counter derivatives) is determined using
valuatian kechniques which maximise tha use of chservabla markat data and rely as litte as possible on eniity-gpecific estimaies. If all significant
inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the insirument is included In level 2.

Leved 3: If one or more of the significant inpuis is not based en sbservable market data, the instrument is includad in level 3. This is the case for
bermewings, debentures, Retention meney payable and hedging darvative included in level 3

Valuation technique used to determine fair valug

Specific valualion techniques used 18 valus financial instruments nolude:

* the use of quated market prices or dealer Quotes for simelar instruments

* the fair value of forward foreign exchange confracts and principal swap i3 detarmined using forward exchange rates at the balance sheel date
* the fair value of the remaining financizl instruments |s datermined using discounted cash flow analysis.

P
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[C) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measu-ed at amortisod cost

el ) T —_— = TMiiioos
As at As at Asg at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2018
Fimancial assets
Carrying value of financial assets at amertised cost
Granl recelvable from NHAI 24581 72 m 485,81
Total Financlal assets at amortised cost 245.81 A7TZ.51 485.81
Falr value of financial assets carriad al amortlsed cost
Grant recoivable fram NHA 24561 | A B 455 81
Total Fair value of financial assets at amorlised cost 24561 , 37251 485.81
I
Financial lahilities
Carrying value of financial labilitics at amartised cont | |
Floating rale borawigns 2,835.05 283187 2 945.74
Relantion menay 311y | 26,94 23.92
o 2,BB6.75 295861 3.019.66
Fair value of financial llakilitios carried at amortised cogt
Flaating rate borrawigns E 2.835.05 2,831 47 2 #8574
Relenlion manay —— oo FEAR, — T, S i
2,866.25 2, 6E8.81 3,019.66

The carrying value amounts of fixed deposits, interest acerued on depoists, retention monay recalvable, insurance claim receivable, cash and cash

equivalants, frade payablas, interes] acorued, employee banafits payable and creditors for capital expenditure approximate their fair value due to their
&hort tenm natuns, .

For financial assats and liabilities that are measured at fair valuae, the carrying amounts are equal to the fair values.
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Mote 24 - Financial risk management
The Company’s activities axposes it lo market rigk, liguidity risk and credit risk,
T'his nate explains the source of Fgk which the entity is exposad to and haw the entity is manage the risk. |

Risk Exposura arising Measurement Managoment
from

Crodil rigk . Cash end cash Aging analysis Diversification of
aguivalents, trade Croadit ratings bank deposiis,
recelvanles, creslil lirmits and
financial assets letlers of credit
measurad at
gmortisad cosl,

Market risk — intarast rate Long-term Hungitivity Activaly Managed
bomowings at analysis
variable

Lieyuidity risk Borrowings and Reliing cash fiow | Ayailability of
other llabilities forecasls commitied credit

| lInes and

bornowing facilitics

Tha Company's rigk Mmanagemant s carmied oul by a8 project finance team and central treasury {eam (group easury) under policies approved by
brand of directors, Group treasury idenliies, evaluates and hedgas financial risk in close co-operation with the Company’s oparating unils. The
Meanagemeant of the Company provides written principles for overall rigk management, 88 well as policles COVETNg s.pa.clﬁc:ffs, such as Intarest
rate nsk and credit sk, use of darivative financial instrument anc non-derivative financial instrument, and investments of e & liguidity

Commodity risk:

The Company requires for implementation (construction, oparaticn and maintanance) of the projecls, such as cement, bitumen, steel and other
construction materials. For which, the Company entared into Nxed price conlract with the EPC contractor and O&M Contraclor s as 1 manage gur
Cxposure o price increases in raw materials. Hence. the sensitivity analysis 15 not required

Markot risk — interost rate risk

Ihe Bank loans follows floating rales with rasets delined under acreaments. While interaat rate fluctuations Gamry a risk on financials, the Company
earn toll income which is linked to WP thus providing a natural hedge ta the interest rate risk,

a} Interest rate risk exposure T Millions
. As at As at As at
CAmictiny March 31, 2017 March 31,2016 | April 1, 2015
Variahio Rate Rorrowings 2.835.05 2,931 67 2 995 74
Fixed Rate Borowings - - -
Total 2,835.05 2,931.87 2,995.74

b} Sensitivity analysis
Prafit or loss is sensitive to higherfiowar interest incoma from borrawings as a result of changes in interest rates.
Impact on profitlioss aftor tax

Interest rates (increase) by 1 basis points {22.40) [23.18) [23.87)
Interest rates decrease by 1 basis points 22.40 2316 2367
T


41017944
Stamp

41017944
Stamp
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Liguidity risk ' |

Liquidity risk is the rigk that the Company may not be able io meel its present and future cash and collalzrg| abligations wilh:aui incurring
unaccepiable losses, The Company objective is to, at all imes maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet itd cash and coliateral requirements.
The Company closely monitars its IFquidity position and depioye a robust cash management system. It maintains adeguate saurces of financing
including debt from barnks at an oplimized cost. The liguidity risk is managed an the basis af expected maturily dates of the financial labilitios. The
average credit period laken la settle rage payables is about 30 1o 80 gays. The camylng amounts are assumad to be a reasonable approximation
ol fzir valua. The following tabic enalyses financial Nabilitics by femaining contractual maturities.

l'he table balow andlyses nen-derivalive financial liasbilijas and nul-gettled denvalive financial liabilitles inte relevant matunly groupings based on
the remaining period at the balance shast dale to the conlractual matunly date. Derivative financial lizbiltlas are mncluded I the analysis if their
conlrectual maturilies are essential for an underslanding of the lining of the cash flows. The amounts disclosed In the table agre the cantraciual

T Millions
Lessthan3 Between J months and  Between 1 year  Between 2 years !
AR Marctat 2017 meanths 1 year and 2 yearg and 5 yoars . "T g b
Non-derivatives
Bomrawings 40.30 120.90 257.92 1.230.50 1,128.40 2.837.12
Trade and other payables 1065 31.88 | A2 61
Dther financizl lizbilltlas 32.20 2 b4 2 - - - 34.74
Total non-derivatives 83.16 155.40 257.92 1,289.60 1,128.40 2.914 47
. Lessthan 3 Between X months and Betwean 1 year  Between 2 years
Awat Manch 31, 2016 months 1ear and 2 years ani § years Over § years Total
MNon-derivatives
Horrowings 2418 T2 54 161.20 1,031.658 1,644 24 2,833,584
Trade and other payables 5.04 17.83 - - - 2377
Other financial liablities . 1.80 31.54 - - 33.34
Total non-derivatives 30.12 9217 182.74 1,031.68 1,644,249 298095
As at April 1, 2015 Less than  Between 3 months Betwoon 1 year Botwoen 2 years Ower § years Total
3 months and * year and 2 years and 5 years

Meon-derivatives
Barrawings 16.12 48,36 86,72 741.52 2,005.60 2,998 32
Trade and other payables 37z 11.16 - F [ 8 14,86
Ciher financial liabilities t- 0.04 - 31.51 - 31.56
Total non-derlvatives 19.84 59.57 96.72 773.03 2.085.60 3.044 75
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TD TOLL ROAD PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 25 - Capital risk management
The Company objectives when managing capital are to

sateguard their ability to continue as a'going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns faor
sharehelders and benefits for other stakeholders, and

*  Maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

Fer the purpose of the Company capital managemen:, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium, sub-debts
and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the parent. The primary objective of the Company
Capital management is to maximize the shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditicns and the
raquirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the
dividend payment to sharehaldsrs. return capital to shareholders or issue interest frae sub-ordinate debt. The Campany
muonitors capital using a gearing ratio. which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company policy is to
keep optimum gearing ratio. The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, trade
payables, less cash and cash equivalents. |

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it
meets financial covenants attached to the interest-besring loans and borrowings that define capital structurs
requirements. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital for half year ended
March 31, 2017 and March 31, 2016.

Consistenl with others in the industry, the group monitars capital on the basis of the tollowing gearing
ratio:

Met debt including total borrowings (net of cash and cash equivalents)

divided by

Tetal ‘equity’ (as shown in the balance sheet),

The Company strategy is to maintain a debt to equity ratio within 3 to 4 The gearing ratios at March 3?.
2017 and March 31, 2016 were as follows:

% Millions
Particul As at As at As at
A March 31, 2017 31st March, 2016 April 1, 2015
Net debt (a) ) 2,800.93 291873 2,980.91
Equity (b) 893.21 1,015.20 1,216.96
Net debt to equity ratio (a) / (b) ' 314 288 245
Particul As at As at As at
artlcutars March 31, 2017 31st March, 2016 April 1, 2015
Net debt (a) 2,800.93 291873 2.980.91
Equity (b) 89321 1,015.2 1,216.96
Nebt debt plus Equity (c = a+b) 3,694.14 3.933.9 4,197 87
Gearing ratic (a)/ ¢ 0.76 0.7 G.71
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TD TOLL ROAD PRIVATE LIMITED
Metes to the Financial Statemonts

Note - 26 Earning per share

T Milligns

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2017

Year ended
March 31, 2046

Profit / Lass atirlbutable 1o EgQuity sharehalders (Rs Millions] (A)
Weighted average number of equity &hares for basic and diuled aarnings per shara (B)
Earnings / {Loss) per shars (Basic and diluted) {Rupeas| (A/B)

Maminai value of Brjuity shures {Rupeesj

{131.40)
1,07 44 820
(12.23)

10.00

(206,79)
1,07 44,920
{18.25)

1000

T
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TO TOLL ROAD PRIVATE LIMITED
MNotes to the Financial Statements

Hote 27 - Taxation
Note 27(a) - Income Tax Expenscs

The balanoe comprises temporary difforencos attributable to :

T Milllong
|
o As at As at
Farticul 1
sz March 31,2047 March 31, 2015
2] Imcame tax expense |
Current tax |
Current tax an profits for the e 000 .37
Adjustments for current tax of priar paoriods | Da3g 0.00
Total current tax expenae (A 0,39 337
|
Deferred tax
Uecresse/{incraase) in deferrad 1ax asants [49.67) {100.41)
{Pecroaseincraazs n deferred tax habditing {3.81) 560
Tetal doferned fax expenso/[benofit) (B (53, 58) {24 51)
Ineame tax rxpense B (53.19) [91.45}
Note 27 (b) Reconciliation of ax expense and the accounting profit muitiplied by India's tax rato:

N As at AB al
Partivolirs March 31, 217 March 31, 2016
Frofit as per Ind A5 from continuing operalions bafars income tax expense .[L B4.27) {298.25)
Frafit framn discontinuing operation bafore income fax ENpense - =
Income Tax as par effoctive Tax Rate of 14.808% 5;51.??} [103.22)
Tax allect of amounts which are ol deductible {taxable) in caleulating taxabla income:

SEC-37 amaount of any liability of 5 camtingent nature provision of Gratuity & leave enchasement D47 0,12
Any olher exemp income-Mutual Eund Dividend- | 0.33) (0.23)
Exponzes net debited o statement of PEL and allewable for income tax (012}

SEC-37-Any other amounl not alewabie undar seCton 37-Senvice Tax Cradil - Prior Year - 324
SEC-37-Amound of any liabsfty of & contingent nature-Provision - 3,78
her temparary diferences 10.24 4.62
Adstments for current tax of prior periods 0.3% -
Income tax expense charged to statoment of Prafit and Loss [63.19) [91.45)
Hote 27fc) - Deferrod tax (lia bility} ! Assct

The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to T Millions

; As af As al As at
Particulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2018 Agril 1, 2015
Lnuzed tax losses carried fesward 250,33 £36.47 205.68
Intarypiblo asapis

Toll collection rights {100.94) (63,85} (16.31)
Oiher items
Grant recesivabla from NHA| (&5 00} {§28.92) uss.13_]
Borowings 072 {075 {0.84)
Aatzntion Money Payable 255 60 dH01R 1475 B
Felroment tonafit obligation o4 | D48 038
et datarred tax (liabllity bassat = 317.16 26358 188,77
Hote 27(d) - Movement in daferred tax llabllity | asset
Flangll:lle agsots -
U"FE:D;“ Toll coliection Other ltems Tatal
Particulars > rights i
As at April 01, 2016 206 RR {16.31) {70 R0 188 77
Chargedieredited) during the year
te profit or ks 3060 (47 .58) 111.82 94 83
1o ether comprehensive income ) : 1002} 10 I'IE?
Az at March 31, 2018 - 238,47 163.89) 51.00 263.58
fsoat April 01, 2016 236 47 (B384 9140 e TIEGE
Tr oo
Chargedieredited) during the quartsr | bod, s
to prodit or foss 13.66 {40.05} 79.45 i R
io other comprehenshve income . e 0.3z f % ':'I- 32_ .
Ak at March 3, 2047 250,33 (103,94) 170.76 | Q{_ﬂ'ﬁw
[ | e
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TD TOLL ROAD PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 28 - Related Party Transactlons l

Mg per accounting standard Ind AS 23 as preseribed under the Comparies {Accounting Standard) Rules, [
2015, the Company's related partios and Iransaclions are disclosed below

Sponsor Company
Refiance Infrastructure Limited

Key Management Personnel

Kalishik Pal - Director (w.e.f, October 1, 2015)

Sudnir B Hashing - Chief execulive officar il Fuobruary 2R, 2015)
Madan Biyani - Director wee.f. March 31, 2015)

Anirudh Mobta - Chief Financial licer

Anirugh Dharwadkar - Company Scuetary

Dibyadyuti Bera - Manager

Persan having singflcant inlluence on the Sponsor Company
Shri Anll 0. Ambani

Detalls of transactions and closing balance [ ¥ Millions

Particulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2006 April 1, 2018

Transactions during the year !

Tall aperation and maintainence @xpenses (including projoct execution
support services)

R Infra 462 4.?1

Reimbursemant of cxpenditura paid by
R Infra : 0.15 .11

Sub-debls received (in nature of equity)
i Infra 10.00 5.00

Balances at the year end

Other eurrent llabilitios

R Infra 8.58 - -
Sub-debts {in nature of equity)

R Infra 152.60 142,50 137.50
Equity share capital lexcluding premium) l

H Infra 107.45 5255 52 65
Spice commernce and trade private limiled {SCTPL) - 17.656 17 .56
Space Trade enterprises private limited (STEPL) . 17.55 17.55
Skyline global trade private limited (SGTPL) . 17.55 17.55
Trustee : Spage Trade Enterprise privata limited

{ Trust : Refiance Toll Road Trust) {(RT 1 rusk) - 215 2,15


41017944
Stamp

41017944
Stamp

41017944
Stamp


TD TOLL ROAD PRIVATE LIMITED
Wotes to the Financial Statements

Note 29 - Gratully and other post-amploymant bonefit plans

a) Defined contribution plan

The rallowing smount recognized as an enpanse in Statement of profil and inss on account af provident fund and olher funds. There are no other

obligations other than the cantrsbion payable to the respective aulhoAtles,

s ¥ Millions
Particulars As o As
: March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
EBenbribudion ta providen fund and othear lunds ©.38 D24 a2
Tatal 638 0.34 021

] Datined banefit plan

The Company hes 8 defined benfit plan [Gratuiy) fx ifs emplovess. The gratulty plan is governed
e completed five years of service is anlilled by IpRific beneli. The lovel of benofits provided de
Every cmployes wha has rompleted five yeas or more of sanace s B grafuity on deparfure &t 15 daye
Per the pravision of the Paymant of Graxluity Act, 1972 with toal c2iling on graduity of Re.1,000,0000-,

salary (last orawn sal
The said grality plan is

By the Payment of Gratuty Act, 1972, Under the Aul, ermoloyes who
ot service and salary at relirernont age,
ary) for &ach completed year of $ernce s

I he Fullowing 1ables sumnszics the The amournils recagnised in e balance sheet and e movements i lhe net defined baneld obligatian u‘.-Jr the: ywar are 82 follows

Opening defined bancfit Hability § {assels)

Net employee beneflt sxponse recognised in tha employes cost
Current service cost

Fasl sarvice cost

Interest eost on banefit obdigation

{Gaim) ! losses on seltlemant

Het benefit expanse

Amount recorded in Othar Comprahensive Income (GO

Measurameant during the perod due fo ;|

Relurm on plan assets, excluding armounts iscludad in Interes! expensali neoma)
Actuanial loss ( (gain) arising from change in financial assumptions

Ariurial boss f (gain) arising an accounl of demographic aesurmptions
Expatiencs (gains)ineses

Armaunt recognized tn OCI

Benatis paymente from pian
Closing net defined benafit liabllity { {asset)
Opening fair value of plan assets

Not emplayes benefit axpense recognised in the employes cost
Inberest cost / {incame) on plan asset

(Gain) ! lossas on seftloment

Het benefit expenso

Amount recorded in Other Comprehensiva Income [OC1)

Moasurement during the period due to i

Retun an plan assats, excluding amounts included in feres ExpEnse Income)
Actuarial lass | (gam) arising from change in financial assumplions

Actuarial luss | (gain) arising on aocount af demographic assumplions
Experiance (gainsiiosses

Azsat calling not recognisod 83 an asset

Amount recognized in OCI

Emplayer contributions/premams pair
dHanulis Paid

Closing fair value of plan assets

1.2¢
.13
oo

0.

D20

0.78
ak=]: ]

252

3.03

083

014

an?

02

0.01

012
Q.13

011

01
0.0a

018
019

TAT

e fle]
@10

0.3

Dar
.46

0.oo
0.8a

1.54

o1e

om

0.21
022

0.ae
0.os

147
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TO TOLL ROAD PRIVATE LIMITED
Netes ta the Financiar Statements

Particulars As al A5 at As at
March 31, 2017 Mareh 34, zo1e April 1, 2018
The nat (liability Vasset disclosod abeve relales i funded plian is as fllows |
Fresunt valug of funded osligations 257 137 k]
Fair value of plan aseets 303 177 147
Afrgunt nod recognised as an 83324 (aszel coiling) —
051} {0.51) 1G.54)
Mat llability is bifurceted as foltows - |
Current . | N
Man-ourrent {2.51) (0.84} [0.54)
Total (061} {0.51) {05
Dsirzint rete : 7.055% T.B0% T Ha%
Expected rale of refurm an plan assate (p.a.)
Salary escalalon rata (P& TE0% FE= it £.50%
Indisin Agsured Lives Intan Assured Lives Indizm Asswred
Martality pra-relivemont Morteliey Miorlakily Lives Mortality
2 (200608} (2006-08) [2006-DE)
A quantiative analyss for significent asswnption |3 a3 shown bexfrge:
Assumptlons «Discount rate
Sansdivily Lovel 20 bp A0 bp A0 bp
Irmpect on defined benefd obligation -w % incregss 5440 5B =5l
Impact on defined banefi obligation -In % decrease 5.83% | & gy £33
Assumptions -Future salary Incroases
Sensilivity Lave| &0 b 50 bp 50 bp
Impact on defined banafit obligation i % increasze 577% 8.03% B.32%
lrnpact on defined bencfit obligation -in % decreage <544 -b.6G% S81%
. |

The table below shows ihe expocied cash flow pralile of he banafils bo ke Paid lo the current merrbership of the plan based on past service of lhe employess as at the

valuatian data

Within the next 12 months (rext annual raporting pericd) .08 0.24 0.3

Betaoan 2 and B years 0.35 018 0,14

Belween 6 and 8 years ) 058 oM o2

For end Beyond 10 years 5.00 2495 2.3

Total expecied payments E.01 348 2T

The average durstion of Ihe dofined benefit Plan abligstion at the end of the reparting period 11.25 years 11.64 years 1218 years

Plan Assets Composition

Nen Quoted

Insurer Managed Funds 303 o 1,77 147
3,03 1.77 1.47

A reconciliation of the asset ceiling during the Inter-yaluation pering |3 given betow |

Crpening valus of azset eslling 0.o7 023 ooz

Add © Intesest on opening balanes on assel oriling 0.1 0.0z 1 X i]

Rempasurament due to |

Changes in surplusidadiciet 10.08) | [0.18} o

cloging value of asset coding ' 0.02 0.07_ 0.23
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TO TOLL ROAD PRIVATE LIMITED
Motos to the Financial Statemants

Mote 30 - FIRST TIME ADOPTION OF IND AS

The Company has prepared these Financial Statements which camply with Ind AS applicable for the perieds ending March 31, 2017 logethear
with the Comparative period data as at and for the year erced March 31, 2015 respectively as described in the summary of signficant
accounting policies. In preparing thase financiz| statements, the Company has considered April 01, 2015 as the dale of transition and has
adiusted tha amouniy reported previously in the inanclal statements prepared in accordance with the aceounting standaids nofifiad irder
Companies [Accounting Standard) Rules. 2006 {25 amended) and olher relevant Provizlons of the Act (Previous GAAP ar Indian GAAP),

The adoplion of Ind AS has been carred oul in aocnn;fancx} with Ind AS 101, First-time Adoption of Indian Accaunting Blandards.

In preparing these Ind A% Finanoial Statements, lha Company has avallad certain exemptions and excaptions in accordanne with Ind A5
101, as cxpigined below. The resuiting dillerence batween the carrying values of the asscls and liabilites in the Finangial Stelements as a1
the transitlan date under lnd AS and Previous GAAR have been recognisad directly in equity (retained earnings or another appropriale
cateqory of eguity). This nole explains the adjusiments madc by the Company in regtating s Praviaus GAAP Financla! Statements, including
ihe Balance Shecl as at April 01, 2015,

A. Exemplions from retrospective application

I A5 101 allows firsl-lime adopters coain exempticns from relrespactive application nf cerlain requiremcnis under Ind A% The: Gompany
hes elected 1o apply the feliwing uptional examptions fom retrospective application of Ing AS:

{a) Amorlization of intangible essate arising from servico concosslon arrangemaonts

The Company has used exermption under nd AS 104 and has continue to adopt the acceunting policy of Previous CAAP far amorizalion
for intangible assets ariging from service cancession HITENQRIMENTS Felaling to concession toll reads inlangible assats recognized in tha
Financial Staternents,

B. Exceplions from retrospective application |

The Company has applied the following excaptions from full refrospective application of Ind AS as mandatorily req_ulred under Ind AS
101, I

{a) Estimates
On assessment of the estimates made under the Previous GAAP financial statemenls, the Company has conciudad thal there is na
recessity to ravise lhe estimates under ind AS, as there is no objective evidence that those estimates were in errar. However, eslimates,
that were required under Ind AS but not required under Srevious GAAP, are made by the Company for the reley reporting dates,
reflecting condifions existing ag at that date ET

(b} Classification and measurement of financial asseis
The classification of financial assets to be measured al amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income is made on the
basis of the facls and circumstances that existed on the dale of transition 1o Ind AS.

C. Transition to Ind AS - Reconciliations

Ind A5 101 requires an entity to reconcile equity. cash flaws for the prier periods, The following tanie represents the reconciliations from
previous Indian GAAP 1o Ind AS:

| Effect of Ind AS adoption on the Balance Sheel as af Mzrch 31, 2016 and Apnl 1, 2015

Il Effect of Ind AS adoption on the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2018

Il Reconciliation of total equity as al March 31, 2016 and April 1, 2015

' Reconciliation of total comprehensive incame for the yeer ended March 31, 2016

W Material adjusiments to the statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2018
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TD TOLL ROAD PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements

.

Effoct of Ind 45 adantion on the staterment of profit and loss

Particulars

Revonue from Operations
Other Income
Total Income

Expanscs
Toll Operetion and Mainlzinence BXPENE0y
Fmployee benafits expenge
Flnance cosls
Amaortizration expanze
Dther expanzes
Total expensos

Profit f (less) before tax
Tax exponsa
Laurent tax
Defarrad tax charge/{credlt)

Profit|Loss) for the poriod (X + X
Othor Comprahensive Income
{I} Items that will not be reclassifiod to profit or loss
Remeasuremants of nel defined banefit plans © Gaing / {Loss)
{il} Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss
Remeasurements of net defined hanefit plans
Other Cemprehansive Income for the year

Total Comprahensive Incoma/ (Loss) for tha yoar

Notos

i)

liv)

{iv)
i

% Milllans

L_mmﬂunmﬂmhum__i

Ind AS |

| G
ndian GAAP~ adustments Ind A3
451.74 (171,60 290 14
1.64 58.30 59,04
= 463,38 {113.30) 350.08
50.43 156.64 2u7.07
.14 0.06 8.20
33438 5659 388 47
a6 B8 el 2577
. 1738 i 17.32
446.93 201,40 §48.33
16.45 (314[70} (298.26)
ja7 - 3.37
- (84153 (94.83)
13.08 {219.87) (208.79)
- 0.06 0.06
0.02 0.0z
0.04 {104
13.08 {219/83) (208.75)

“Ihe presentation requirements under Previous EAAP difters from and hence the Previous GAAP mlnrmatlnn has beon
regrouped for ease of reconciliation with Ind AS. The regrouped Previous GAAP informatian is derived based on the audited

Reconciliation of Total Equity
Particulars

Total equity (shareholder's funds as per Indian GAAF)

Adjustments:

Retrospeclive application of sorvice CONCAsAONAING arrangemants
Meat Impact of Financial assets recognised under concossionaine
arrangemeant (noet ol discounting)

Capital Keserve recagnised as financial sszal

Resurfacing provigion recognised a3 per Ind AS 38 {including
urwinding of discount an FesLfacing provision)

Sub-ordinated debl in nature of aquity

Discourting of Ratention moncy payable
Rorrowngs

Cithers

Tax effects on adjusiments (defered tax impact)
Total adjustmants

Tolal equity (shareholder's funds as per Ind AS)

Notes

i)
m
]

(v}

{vi)
(v}
{iiiy

{in

March 31, 2016
—_—

2.048.01

{186.21)

20687
{1.074.60)

{548 41)
142.60
110.51)

£1.81)

263 58
{1,307.59)

Ta0.42

April 01, 2018

2034 53

{197.10)

31917
{1,074 60)

{437.59)
137.50

(7.52)
[1.39)

LN
{1,092.76)
242.47


41017944
Stamp

41017944
Stamp

41017944
Stamp


TOTOLL ROAD PRIVATE LIMITED
Motes to the Financial Statements

IV. Reconciliation of Total Comprehensive Income

Pariculars

Mat profil or loss as per Previous GAAR {indian GaAR)
Adjustments:

Refrospective application of service concessichaire arangemants
Resurfacing provision recogrised g5 par ind 45 38 {ineluding
unwinding of discount on resurfacing provision)

Discounting of Relention maney payabla

Borrowings

Nel Impact of Financial assets recognised under concessionairs
arangement (nat of dizcounling)

Tax effects on adjustrments fdeferred tax imipacl)
Total of Adjustment
Not profitless as per Ind AS

V. Material adjustments to the statement of cazh flows

Particulars

MNet cash flews from operating activities

et cash flows from investing activities

Met cash flows from financing activities

Mel increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash eguivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Notes

i)
{iv)
(v
i)
i
{iiy

—_—
Year endod

March 31,
13.08

10.89
(208.82)
{3.00)
{0.41)
(113.30)

84 31

_ {z13.83)
) {206.75)

For the year endad March 31, 2016

Ind AS

H Il
Indian GAAP atijustments Ind AS

399.89 (2(a0) 396.90

(7.82) 2190 (5.02)
(383.85) (0,013 {383.846)

{1.80) o00 (1.59)

14.83 (0.00) 14.83

12.04 0.00 12,04
—a——
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Moles to First time adoption of Ind AS |
Note (i) - Application of servien concessionaire arrangemont as per Appendix A of Ind 45 11 |
Appendix & af Ind AS 11 ‘Sarvice Concesssonawe Arrangernent s applicable to the Compary which provides guidance on ancuul’!‘dﬂg by the operatars of

in{raa!_rm_:lure Fn_r pmu-isicln_or pubii= services, The Company ie ¢ngaged in o Dasign, Build, Finance, Cperate and Transfor [DBFOT) basiz the toll roads
Including operatien and maintenance theroat dlering the concession period, After the mxpiry of the concession perind the Company fa réauired 1o handovsr the
infrastructura i o, the talf reads do the granior | 0. National Higthway Authonties of (ndia (MHALY (

A8 per the salient featura of the cononssion Brrangerment, the oparalor hes g twafekt activity based an which revenue Iz recognized in the financial slalnments
whigh is in e with the requiroment of Appendic A of jnd AR 11

- & conetruchion setivity mn respect af its abligafion ta design, build and finance an asset that il rmakes avadsbhe the Frantar . revenue s recognized on g stage of
cumnplotion basis in arcordance with el AS 11 during the constructan phese of the ¥ mads.

= an operaling and mainiananoe Bty I imspect of the assets under the concession during {he speraticas - revenue s recoanized in scourdanes with nd
AS 18,

In retum of it activitos, the Company receives considenstion from ysevs of inll roads as right o receive tall far usege of lol inads in sensideratiun for the

ion of the infrastructuie for which an niangible aseels is recaghized m ihe firancial stetements. Ao a5 per the concussion
arrangament part of the project cost is caverad by &n unconditional right to receive payments fram the grantor i.e NHA| which has beon recognized as 'Grant
recelvabla fram NHAL undar the head financal assel’ and intangitl: assets has been reeognized to lhe extent of unguarantead balance, of which the amoue!
is dependant on e cotent of use of b infrastructure

Retrospactive application of ‘Service Concessionairg arengemant'| has led {a change in the Brsounluyg policy of the Company as on the Fansiton Hate for
dassification, recognition and maasuremont of construclion of asssts and mainienance oligsbions under the service COncEsEIon arranqrnem;.

On account of abave there has bean decreass in intangible asssls ariging on account of toll ecllaction rights of 7 1, 074 60 millans ac &t Mawch 21,2016 and
107460 millions es a April 1, 2015 whersin the Company has jan unconditional right tn recsive payments from the grantor e, NHA| which has besn
declucted from he cost of infangibla assets ang recognized a3 financial assets which sadier under the ndian GAAR was considered Az promster's contibion
and was recognized s "Capitsl Reseryg’ in accordance with A 17 “Acoounting for Government grants’ |

Further, impact of financial asseis recognized under concessionglre arrang=ment (net of discounting) resulting in increase in Tala ity ¥ 20587 miilicns as
al March 31, 2016 and 7 319,17 millinns as at April 1, 2015 and and incresss in loss for the year ended March 31, 2016 of T 113 30 millions,

Meorecver there has been decraase in intanglbla assets and decrease in total S5uity, arising on acesunt of application of earvies concessian arrangement, of
T186.21 mificns as ut March 31, 2016 and TLET10 millions az at April 1, 2015 and decraase in Iozs of TLO 82 millions for the year ended Mares M, 2018

Naote (i) - Recognition of deferred fax assetaliability a8 per lnd A5 12

Ined AS 12 requires &n ontity 1o fecognlze doferred iy using balanco: sheet Approskch, which is based on the temporary diffovences bebween the tax base of an
asset or liability and its carrying amaunt in tha financial siatemants. Defarmed L is prowided in ful for all temparary difforences arising betweon the tax bases
of asseds end liabililee and thelr carrying amaunt in the financial statements. The Campany recognizes deferred 1ax ssseés for al doductible temporary
differances incuding unused 1ax josses carred forward to the scont that it is probable thal taxable profits would Be avaiable against which the daductibla
temparary dfferences can bo utiized

Under Indian GAAP deferred tax was recognized based on incoma epproach and deferrsd tax asents in case of unused tax csses carried forward are
recognized if thers is vidual cartainty that suMficient future taxabie income will be avallabie to realize e same. Hence on account of abeve deferred tax assets
were nol recognized under the Indian GALP,

On account of sbove there has bean increase in detemsd tox asset (nat) resulting in increase in Total Equity by T 263.58 milions as at March 31 2016 and T
168,77 millions as &t Agell 1, 2045 and decreasa in loss of 164,51 millions during the year ended March 31, 2018 mainly on account of Ind AS adustiments
pertaining fo retrospective applicabon of service concession arrangenent and deferred tax asset recognized for unused tex losses camed forward as per Ind
A5 12,

Mote (iii) - Borrowings

Ined A% 109 requires bansacten sssts incurred fwards orgination of bomowings to be deducted from the Camying amednt of barrowings on inifial recagrition
The: same is recognized as interoat as part of the effective Intzrest rata mwthod over the period of the borrowing

Under Indian GAAR, these ware capilalised o Intangible aesets s per AS 16 ‘Horowing cosi’ g8 and when incured

O account of above Ihero has been incresss in borrowings by 1 87 millleas as at March 21, 2016 ang 1 39 millons as a1 March 31, 2015 with a
carresponding adjustment ks intangible.assets. This resdted In ifereas in 55 by T0.41 millions for the year snded March 31, 2016

Hota (iv) - Resurfacing obligation rec egniked as per bnd A5 37

As por service sancesson arangement, the Company is obligated ta carry out resurfasing of the mads under the conouession parissd every five yaars The
Cempany eslimates the likely prowvsion roguired tewards rasurfacing and accruee the cosis on an srasght line basis gver e perind at the end of which
resurfacing woutd te: required in the Staterment of Proflt and Lose.

Under Indian GAAP the same chigation was recognized in tho ¥Ear In which resurlacing wes required aa per the concsseion anzEngement

The et effed of the sbove is decreass in total 2quity by THAE.41 millicn3 a3 81 March 31, 2098 and T437 54 rlons a5 8t ApAl 1, 20148 wilh mnesponding
increase i resurfacing previsione el of unwinding discount). This resulted in insrease in foss by 208,82 millions lor fhe wear ended March 41, 2048

S
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Nedo (vh- Discounting af Retention mEney

Uinder Ingigr GAAR retention maney was racognised st histoncal coat and no discounting was required to e done. |

The discounting has bees recagnizcd &3 & financ: cost The net effect of the ahove I8 decresse in 1ot equity by T10.51 mflions a3 lat March 31, 2046 and
I7.52 as at April 1, 2015 with a corresponding adjustment o retention money Thia resultad in increase n loss by T 3 milions for mq yaar ended Merch 31,
2016

Ind A3 32 requiros classification of finencial instruments issyed inta firanclal Fabilities or equlty, Subomroinate debt inels uments issuad dg not meot the Sefinition
o a financial liabilily, fs the terme do nnt cast a cantraciual obligaticn on the the Cempany o make any payment of principsl and georued intsnes] thereqn in
caeh ur viher financial asset, Further, sinee the ingtruments are nen-convartible, the Company is not fequired tn settie the conlrmcts by issuance of their own
|quIity instrimants,

Mote [vi)- Classification of subordinate deht Instruments [in nature of equity)

Undear Indinn GAAP, thege instrumerts were importes s bomrowings.

On aceount of abeve thare has been increase in tatsl equity by ¥ 14250 millione as ot Marsk 1, 2016 and T 137 50 millions as at Apwil 1, 2018 with a
corresponding dncreaste in boirowings.


41017944
Stamp

41017944
Stamp

41017944
Stamp


TD TOLL ROAD PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statoments

Mote 31 - Assels pledged as soc urity

The zarrying amounts of sssats Pledged a8 secusilty for curent and ron-curent borrawings are. I Millians
Motes March 31, 2017 Mara:h 31, 2016 Aprll 1, 2015
Current
Financial agsets
First change
Cash and cash aquivalonts Sa .12 12.54 14.23
Bank balsnces athar than above fikx - 5.00 500
Other Financial Assats Sc G1.58 62,69 T0.22
Non-financlal assats
Fusf chame
Other Current Assels T 528 18.01 1835 |
Total current assets pledgod a3 security 99.00 96.64 103.44_
MNon-curremt
First chergs
Intangible Asse 4 3,7B5.83 3,805.41 | 382543
CHher Financial Assets Gd 180.35 3083 416.50
Cthar non current assets ] 0.51 0.51 054
Total non-current assets pled a8 Security 3,960.70 4,116.54 4,242.48
b:ﬂ'.al assels plodged as security 4,059.70 4,213.18 4,350.52
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TD TOLL ROAD PRIVATE LIMITED
Motes to the Financial Statemonts

Note 32 - Statement of cash received and depositec during demonitization period

¥ Millians
Specified bank notes Other ._ Tutal =]
Particulars denomination |
ks ) nates
CHosing cash in kand 23 on 08 14 2018 077 oo 077
[+ Permittad recaipts 254 218K 2847
[=) Pemaitted paymernts = -
{=h Amncuni depostted in bank 3.30 Z1.08 24.35
_|Closing cash In hand as on 30.12,2015 - 0.5 0.80
Note 33 Contingent liabilitias
Sl. No. Particulars | March 31, 2017
Lifferencas in balances a& per bank loan confirmations and books of accounts mainly an
1 acceunt of interest rate rasetting are undar recanciliation with the bankars. The Company ' 1.80
expect to settle these soon and do not antizipate any further liability on account of intersst.
As per Assessment order for AY 201 3-14, a demand of ¥ 1.14 Million was raised by IT
2 department. The Company had defendad the demand and approached to CIT Appeals and an 1.14
amount of ¥ 0.41 Million was deposited under protast

Mote 34 - Arbitration Claims

Company had initiated arbitration procesdings ggainst National Highways Authority of India. The dizputed amount that is being
referred to arbilration is ¥ 2 821,86 millians on account nen. payment of various claims by NHAI inter alia the exlendad stay cosls, loss
of revenue due to delay in COD and loss of revenue due 1o shifting of tall plaza location. Additicnal claim of 225,21 millionz is alzo
being referred to arbitralion on account of (a) additional cost incurred on account of independent consuliants remuneration during
extended construction pericd, (b) interest for delay in disbursermnent of grant, (c) cempensation for additional cost incurred on account
of ‘Change in Law' provision under the concession agreernant and (d) luss in revenue due to nen execution of the 1 Km. stretch from
Km. 333+000 to 334+000. The Above matiers are panding before arbitral tribunal,

EPC Contractors have made various claims against the Company worth ¥ 2 968,58 millions. The ameunts refarred are including
interast on delayed payment. Howeaver, It has been agreed between the EPC contractors and Company that the payments for the
claims would be made only to the extant to such EPC Cortractors claims that have been accepted and paid by NHAI

Note 35 = Demonetisation

Conseguent upon the de-monetisation of currency notes by the Central Government, toll collection had been suspended from
November 8, 2016 o Decamber 2, 2016 for which (he Company has raised claims on NHAI for reimbursement of the expenses
Incurred during this period as per the provisions of the Concession Agreement entered inta between the company and NHAI read
along with NHAI circular dated Naovember 23, 2016 and December 6, 2016 in this regard. Amount of ¥24.47 millions claimed, baing
contractually enforceable and cartain of recovery has been recognised as other oparating income. As at March 31, 2017, ¥5.59
millions was receivable and disclosad under Other Financials Assets = Current.

Note 36 — Toll Operation and Maintenance Expenses (Refer Note 17) for the year ended March 31, 2017 includes the
following:

a) In the month of December 2015, dua 1o heavy flcods in the state of Tamil Nadu which had an impagi on the project assets of the
Company. The Company had praferred claim for the loss due 1o the flocds. Pending settismeant of the same, the amounts incurred
during the year ended March 31, 2016 and year ended March 31, 2047 for restorgtion of darmages at site were booked under
advances as Claims Racalvablz. Duning the yaar ended March 31, 2017, the insurance claims were sattled at T12.42 Millicns.
Accordingly the difference of Claims Racelvable and tha Irsurance Claims actually received, amaunting to 2898 Millinns was
charged off to the Statemant of Profit & Loss under the head Maintenance of Roads forming part of Tol Oparation and Maintenance
expenses dunng the year ended March 31, 2017,

B} The Companys, insurred cerain expanditure pertaining to installation of Weigh-in-Mation (WWIM} =ystems in tolling lanes at toll
Placas. an additional toll collection lane including loll managament systern and ather ftems amounting to T10.83 Millions. The same
has been charged off to Staterment of Profit and Loss under the head Toll Operation and Maintenance Expensas for the year ended
March 31, 2017.

&) Pursuant to the NHAI Circular dated Noverber 15, 2013, wharein MHAI prescrbed that micro surfacing may. be used for the
renewal course, maintenance and repair on national highways for at least 25% to 20% of he total length. Based on the said circular
the Companys have estimatad the provision for Hesurfacing expenses in the books of accounts

Note 37 - Quring lhe period the company had appaointed a (ol consultant and have re-estimated the toll revenue aver the ‘_'EB'ﬁ,'—”.i'fTE-_"‘?mk
concession pediod. Accordingly, Intangible Assets have been smortised prospectively as per the revised estimated tull%yf__-_‘-__

Note 38 - Events after reporting period

There are no subsequent event after the reporting adjustments to the Financial Statements. \ﬁ 1
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TD TOLL ROAD PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements [

Note 39 - Previous year figures have beer regrouped and re-arranged wherever necessary to make
them comparable to those for current year |

As per our attached report of even date

For MKPS & Associates For and on behalf of Lhe Board
Charlared Accountants
Firm's Regn. No. 302014E s
‘ : '—._‘J = - B - S
[ __Magendra Khandal Kaushik Pal  Madar Biyani  WairbdivMahta -~
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“Membership No. : 085025 DIN:05237230 DIN:O7 180371 | [
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